ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON M LI TARY AND VETERANS' AFFAI RS
February 23, 2017
1:05 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Chris Tuck, Chair

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Vice Chair
Representative Justin Parish (via tel econference)
Representative |Ivy Spohnhol z

Represent ati ve George Rauscher

Representative Lora Rei nbold

Representati ve Dan Saddl er

COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO. 126
"An Act relating to workers' conpensation benefits for nenbers
of the organized mlitia."
- MOVED CSHB 126(M.V) OUT OF COWM TTEE
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 126

SHORT TI TLE: ORGANI ZED M LI TI A: WORKERS COMPENSATI ON
SPONSOR(s): M LI TARY & VETERANS' AFFAI RS

02/ 15/ 17 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 15/ 17 (H) MV, L&C

02/ 21/ 17 (H) MLV AT 1:30 PM GRUENBERG 120
02/ 21/ 17 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 21/ 17 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 23/ 17 (H) MLV AT 1: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120

W TNESS REG STER

MARI E MARX, Director

Central Ofice

Di vision of Wrkers' Conpensation

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opment (DLWD)
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 126.

SCOTT JORDAN, Director
Di vision of R sk Managenent

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -1- February 23, 2017



Depart ment of Adm nistration
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 126.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 05:52 PM

CHAIR CHRIS TUCK called the House Special Committee on Mlitary
and Veterans' Affairs neeting to order at 1:05 p.m
Represent ati ves Saddl er, Reinbold, Spohnhol z, Rauscher, and Tuck
were present at the call to order. Represent ati ves LeDoux and

Parish (via teleconference) arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HB 126- ORGANI ZED M LI TI A: WORKERS COVPENSATI ON

1: 06: 24 PM

CHAIR TUCK announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 126, "An Act relating to workers' conpensation
benefits for nmenbers of the organized mlitia."

CHAIR TUCK stated that HB 126 woul d extend workers' conpensation
benefits to organized [mlitia nmenbers] while participating in
trai ni ng exercises. Current statute already provides workers'
conpensation benefits to nmenbers of the organized mlitia when
called into active service; HB 126 would extend the benefits to
trai ni ng.

1: 07: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER asked what the workers' conpensation
coverage woul d cost the state both before and after an injury.

1: 08: 33 PM

MARI E  MARX, Di rector, Division of Workers  Conpensati on,
Department of Labor & Wrkforce Developnent (DLWD), answered
that the remedy for an injury wthout workers' conpensation, is
through litigation. She remarked:

Workers' conpensation is an insurance program that
provides pronpt, efficient, limted benefits to an
enpl oyee, and in exchange for providing those
benefits, the injured worker gives up their right to
sue and gives up their right to pursue pain and

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 2- February 23, 2017



suffering and punitive damages and so forth. So it's
a limted benefit system and they call it the great
conprom se, 'cause that's what it really is - it's a
conpromise that really resulted from the industria

revolution when there were severe injuries and
resulting lawsuits that put enployers out of business.
So before workers' [conpensation] is in place, it
would be the tort remedy and whatever danages are
pursued t hrough that.

M5. MARX explained that under HB 126, a worker whose injury
falls within the coverage could receive nedical costs, indemity
benefits, death benefits, and reenploynent benefits. The
indemmity or wage | oss woul d be cal cul ated based on the workers
gross weekly earnings, and woul d be capped at $1, 239 per week.

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER offered his understanding that under HB
126, there is no cost to state unless a covered worker gets
hurt; the costs of the injury could result in a slight rise in
prem uns across the many state enpl oyees.

V. MARX responded that the State of Alaska as the enployer
woul d not incur additional premuns: Any benefits paid would be
the costs. She expressed that there is no way to know what
costs or benefits will be paid in any future case.

1:11: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER drew attention to the zero fiscal notes
provided by the Departnment of Admnistration, Departnent of
Labor, and Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs. He
of fered his understanding that a zero fiscal note is provided as
confirmation that the Jlegislation wuld have no financial
i npact, but this piece of legislation has an uncertain financial
i mpact . He opined that based on previous testinmony which
identified that the costs are unknown, an indeterm nate fisca
note would be nore appropriate. He requested a new fiscal note
to reflect the uncertainty of costs.

Ms. MARX responded that the Division of W rkers' Conpensation
woul d not incur any additional costs to adm nister the coverage
under HB 126

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER remarked, "If this is free, great, let's

cover everybody all the time, if it's free ... but | suspect it
is not."

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 3- February 23, 2017



M5. MARX deferred the question to the Division of Risk
Managenent .

1:13: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER noted that there is value in providing
wor kers' conpensation to the organized mlitia menbers, and the
fiscal notes should reflect the certainty of the costs. He
remarked, "If we don't know what that cost will be, | think that
deserves an indetermnate fiscal note."

SCOTT JORDAN, Director, Division of Ri sk Mnagenent, Departnent
of Adm nistration, responded that Representative Saddler's
comments are not incorrect. He explained that the Division of
Ri sk Managenment can calculate the salaries and projected costs
of nost state enployees and can generate a rate; however, the
di vi sion does not have accurate data on nenbers of the organized
mlitia and is unable to generate a rate. He agreed that if
there was a claim then there would be a premum for that agency
for that claim but it can't be cal cul ated bef orehand.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER expressed that if there is no way to
calculate [the costs], then the fiscal inpact is indeterm nate.
He mentioned that mlitia nenbers would be in circunstances with

a higher chance of injury than nost state workers. He drew
attention to page 1, lines 5-9, of HB 126, which read as
fol |l ows:

(a) A nenber of the organized mlitia who has been
ordered into active state service by the governor
under AS 26.05.070 or ordered into training under AS
26. 05.100, and who suffers an injury or disability in
the line of duty, is an enployee of the state for
pur poses of this chapter.

MR. JORDAN noted that HB 126 woul d add coverage during training
and organized mlitia nmenbers are already covered while on
active duty.

1:15:38 PM
CHAIR TUCK asked whether a rate was previously determ ned for
the coverage of nenbers of the organized mlitia during active

duty. He asked if any injuries have increased workers
conpensati on paynents.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -4- February 23, 2017



MR. JORDAN answered that organized mlitia nenbers have been on
the books for so long that he is unsure whether rates were
calcul ated before he started working with the departnent in
1998. He offered his wunderstanding that simlar groups of
peopl e covered by workers' conpensation were taken into account
when the division started generating premuns. He proposed that
wor kers' conpensation costs were likely considered as a whol e,
not individually. He remarked, "There's no way for us to
i ndividually count these people because they' re not reported on
the [full-tinme equivalents] (FTEs)."

CHAIR TUCK offered his wunderstanding that nenbers of the
organized mlitia are considered part of the collective and the
costs would be absorbed by the collective. He asked how soon
the state would see an increase in workers' conpensation rates
based on the proposed provision.

MR. JORDAN responded that Chair Tuck is correct that nmenbers are
cal cul ated as a whol e. He explained that if a claimwere filed
and concluded in fiscal year 2017 (FY 17), then the claim would
be on the FY 18 prem uns anortized over five years.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said that he tries to be weary of "little
foxes that spoil the vineyards." He noted that the House
Special Conmttee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs can nmake
policy decisions, but the costs mght need to go to the House
Fi nance Conmittee.

1:18: 38 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER npbved to attach an indeterm nate fisca

note to HB 126. [ The notion was subsequently referred to as
Amendnent 1. ]

1:18: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX objected to the notion. She stated that
departnents, not commttees, decide a bill's fiscal note.

1:19: 26 PM

CHAIR TUCK offered his understanding that fiscal notes have been
changed in committee through dial ogue.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX responded that her attenpt last year to

"zero out" a fiscal note was overruled by the Speaker [of the
House] .

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 5- February 23, 2017



CHAIR TUCK pointed out that neither the future premuns for
wor kers' conpensation coverage nor the costs of litigation and
nedi cal expenses w thout workers' conpensation coverage can be
accurately predicted, but it is clear that the costs wthout
coverage would be much nore than the prem uns. He nentioned an
exanple where one person's claim was larger than the entire
annual budget for the [Al aska State Defense Force]. He asked

"Do we really want to put ourselves at that type of risk ...,
and what is the cost of that risk?"

1:21:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER identified that the fiscal notes are all
the initial versions and have not been updated. He stated that
a potential anmendnent could add death and disability benefits,
and the costs would need to be re-evaluated if the anendnent is
adopt ed.

1: 21: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PARISH stated his opposition to changing the
fiscal notes, because they were prepared by professionals and
because all envisioned scenarios show that the state's exposure
woul d be lower with workers' conpensation coverage.

CHAI R TUCK announced that the forthcom ng vote would only be for
menbers in the room

1: 23: 10 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Saddler and
Rei nbol d voted in favor of the notion to attach an indeterm nate
fiscal note to HB 126 [subsequently referred to as Amendnent 1].
Representatives Spohnholz, LeDoux, Rauscher, and Tuck voted
against it. Therefore, the notion failed by a vote of 2-4.

1:23: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if Alaska State Defense Force
(ASDF) nenbers and [ Al aska] National Guard nmenbers are currently
covered while on active duty.

MR. JORDAN answered that both are covered as state enpl oyees and

woul d receive the sanme benefits as state enployees, including
wor kers' conpensati on

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 6- February 23, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked, "The [Alaska] National Guard
when [nmenbers] are wundergoing training, are they «currently
covered by workers' conpensation as state enpl oyees?"

MR. JORDAN offered his understanding that they are not cover ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if ASDF volunteers are covered
during training.

MR. JORDAN answered that they are not covered.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if death benefits would be given if
an Al aska National Guard nenber died during active service.

MR.  JORDAN answered yes. I f nmenbers were activated by the
governor, then they have benefits as state enployees; if nenbers
were activated by the federal governnent, then they would be
covered by the federal governnent.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if there is death coverage for ASDF
menbers while in active duty or training.

MR. JORDAN responded that menbers currently have death benefits
if activated by the governor but do not have death benefits for
training m ssions.

1:26: 28 PM

CHAIR TUCK noved to adopt Amendnent 2, |abeled 30-LS0357\D.1,
Wal | ace, 2/22/17, which read as foll ows:

Page 1, line 8:

Delete "or disability:

Insert ", disability, or death”
1: 26: 58 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
CHAI R TUCK expl ained that Amendnent 2 would add death benefits
to the coverage for nenbers of the organized mlitia during
trai ni ng.

1:27:17 PM

M5. MARX said that |anguage in Amendnment 2 mrrors |anguage in
mlitary code.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -7- February 23, 2017



1: 27: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD asked if the reason for a zero fiscal
note i s because there is no anticipation of a death.

V. MARX offered her understanding that Representati ve
Rei nbold's question pertains to the fiscal note from the
Division of Risk Managenent which would pay the benefits; the
Di vision of W rkers' Conpensation would adm nister benefits and
woul d not have any increased operational costs under HB 126.

1: 28: 08 PM

MR. JORDAN stated that there is no anticipation of death [during
training], although it is possible. He noted that ASDF training
m ssions have only had one injury, so it is difficult to
calculate possible costs. He explained that wor ker s’
conpensation costs go up and down by mllions of dollars each
year, but the premuns stay fairly consistent as the risk is

spread anong all the departnents. He commented that a death
would be tragic and although it would be expensive, the costs
woul d be spread out. He stated that DWA would not incur such

costs on its own.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked if [Anendnent 2] would result in
any financial increase to the state. She commented that
government is continuing to grow wth unintended costs; she
nmenti oned that although there have been nassive investnents, the
state still has poor statistics.

1: 30: 09 PM

M5. MARX pointed out that workplace fatalities are rare and have
been decreasing; there were 17 work-related deaths statew de
| ast year. Al though the nunmber is |lower than previous years,
she stated her hope that the state gets to zero work-rel ated
deat hs.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked if the nunber includes both the
public and private sectors.

M5. MARX answered that it includes all work-related deaths
suffered by public or private enployees in Al aska. She stated
that she does not have the breakdown but would obtain the
i nf ormati on.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 8- February 23, 2017



1:31:16 PM

CHAI R TUCK expl ained that Amendnent 2 would change only section
1 of HB 126 in order to conformto other statutory |anguage.

1: 31: 51 PM

CHAIR TUCK asked Representative Saddler if he maintained his
obj ection to Anendnent 2.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER answered yes and he indicated he would
like a roll call vote.

1: 32: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH spoke in support of Anmendnent 2 to nake
statutory | anguage consi stent.

1: 32: 28 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Rauscher, Saddl er
Rei nbol d, Spohnhol z, LeDoux, and Tuck voted in favor of
Amendrent 2.  Therefore, Anmendnent 2 was adopted by a vote of 6-
0.

1: 33: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE = SADDLER asked for clarification regarding
Amendnent 1.

CHAIR TUCK explained that he had treated Representative
Saddler's previous notion for an indetermnate fiscal note as
bei ng Anendnent 1.

1:33:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said that HB 126 would "plug a potentia
hole." He asked that the inpacts of HB 126 would be and the
risks it would address.

1: 33: 50 PM

MR. JORDAN answered that up to 76 ASDF nenbers doing training

m ssions would be covered for an additional 24 to 28 days per
year .

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 9- February 23, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER characterized that the coverage is quite
small conmpared to the full scope of the State of Al aska
wor kf or ce

MR. JORDAN agr eed.
1:34:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHOLZ said that the volunteers who sign up to
actively volunteer wth ASDF are doing the state a great

servi ce. She expressed that insuring ASDF nenbers while they
prepare for an enmergency offers nmenbers the security needed if
sonmet hi ng happened that mght jeopardize their Ilivelihood and
woul d give nenbers confidence that their service would not
jeopardize their famlies. She reported that in Al aska,
honel essness and bankruptcies are often caused by healthcare
crises that put people in financial desperation. She conveyed

that HB 126 a way to ensure that those serving Al aska through
the ASDF woul dn't have to face that risk

1: 36: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER offered his support of the bill although
he noted that there m ght be future costs involved.

1:37: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD stated that it is inportant to have the
vol unt eer defense force covered in an energency. She renarked:

However, I'm going to say that this is an inconsistent
nmessage. W just had Departnment of Mlitary &
Veterans’ Affairs [Finance] Subcommttee closeout and
the only cut that we nade was a small token of noney
to help enpower our rural conmunities to prepare for

natural or mannmade disaster. And ... | think that was
a terrible mstake in our [House] Mlitary and
Veterans' Affairs [Finance Subconmttee] and | would

just ask you, M. Chairman, to please reconsider what
happened there. But with that I'm definitely going to
be supporting this.

1:38:21 PM
CHAIR TUCK responded that he is not the <chair of the

af orenenti oned subcomm tt ee: The action has been taken and any
future anendnents can be brought forward to the House Finance

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -10- February 23, 2017



Standi ng Committee. He stated that it is an unfortunate cut to
a program but that <cut is unrelated to the proposed
| egi sl ati on.

1:39: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER, upon remarking that HB 126 is good and
covers unlikely but potentially bad risk, noved that HB 126 be
sponsored by the commttee.

CHAIR TUCK clarified that HB 126 was already a conmttee bill.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noted that the conmttee, [by a vote of

4:2 during its organizational discussion on 1/26/17], had
granted the chair permssion to draft any bill on behalf of the
conmittee.

CHAIR TUCK said he would entertain a notion to object to the
conm ttee sponsorship of HB 126. [ The previous notion by
Representative Saddler for conmmttee sponsorship of HB 126 was
treated as w thdrawn. ]

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER noved to express his opposition to HB 126

bei ng sponsored by the commttee. He added, "I was trying to
express support for the bill, but |I'm being nmaneuvered into
saying, 'No.' But okay, that's the notion required, then

that's nmy notion."
CHAI R TUCK asked Representative Saddler to restate the notion.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said, "I nove that the House Special
Commttee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs not adopt HB 126 as
a commttee bill."

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX objected to the notion. She expressed
that since there had already been a vote on the matter, the
appropriate [action] would be to nove to rescind [the conmittee
sponsor shi p] .

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER expl ained that he sinply had been trying
to express the commttee's explicit approval of HB 126 as
opposed to the universal [ approval related to commttee

sponsorship of |egislation]. He said, "So, for the good of the
bill and for the process of the commttee, | wthdraw ny
notions."

1:42: 34 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -11- February 23, 2017



CHAIR TUCK commented that the mpjority of the commttee's
gquestions pertain to the costs associated with HB 126. He
stated that w thout insurance, the departnent has a high risk:
one injury cost the departnent its entire budget [for ASDF]. He
noted that HB 126 would not cost the state any additional noney
and would elimnate future financial risks to the state.

1:43: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noved to report HB 126, as anended, out of
committee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 126(M.V) was noved
out of the House Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs Speci al
Conmi ttee.

1:45: 04 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting was
adj ourned at 1:45 p. m

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -12- February 23, 2017



